STUDENT ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

By

ETHER S. MOHAMAD ALI ***

HAMSA A. ABDULLAH * ISRAA A. MOHSON **

* Assistant Lecture, Information Engineering College, Nahrain University, Baghdad, Iraq. ** *** Information Engineering College, Nahrain University, Baghdad, Iraq.

ABSTRACT

Student attendance management system deals with the maintenance of student's attendance details. It generates the attendance of the student on basis of presence in class. It is maintained on the daily basis of their attendance. The staff will be provided with the separate username & password to prepare the student's status. The staff handling the particular subject in responsible to mark the attendance for all students. Only if the student is present on that particular period, then the attendance will be calculated. The students attendance reports on weekly and consolidate basis will be generated. Keyword: Attendance Management System, Feasibility Study, Login, Report.

INTRODUCTION

Calculation of student attendance by university instructors during each class is a time consuming process especially when classes are big. Some faculty policies require this task to be performed by the instructor in each lecture. In other words, out of the total hours that are assigned to a given course, which is typically forty-five hours per semester, up to eight hours may be lost to perform this process that usually takes around ten minutes per lecture. (Fadi, & Nael, 2014).

"Attendance Management System" is a software developed for maintaining the attendance of the student on the daily basis in the college. Here the staff, who are handling the subjects, will be responsible to mark the attendance of the students. Each staff will be given a separate username and password based on the subject they handle. An accurate report based on the student attendance is generated here. This system will also help in evaluating attendance eligibility criteria of a student. Report of the student's attendance on weekly and monthly basis is generated (Kalaisankaran B., 2013).

Attendance Management System basically has two main modules for proper functioning

- First module is, the admin who has the right to create space for a new batch. Any entry of new faculty, updation in subject if necessary, and sending notice is done by the admin.
- Second module is handled by the user which can be

a faculty or an operator. User has a right of making daily attendance and generating reports.

Attendance can be taken in two ways:

- On the basis of Subject and month.
- On the basis of Class.

1. Related Work

Many researchers studied the field of Student Management Attendance System of different methods and principles to effectively to monitor the attendance of students. In 2012 O. Shoewu, and O.A. Idowu, proposed a system which takes attendance electronically with the help of a finger print device and the records of the attendance are stored in a database. Attendance is marked after student identification (O. Shoewu, & O.A. Idowu, 2012).

In 2013, Zhang Yuru, Chen Delong and Tan Liping, designed and implemented a system that checks the attendance system of a class which based on RFID on the basic of characteristics of embedded ARM and RFID technology (Zhang, Chen & Tan , 2013).

In 2014, Akshay A. Kumbhar, Kunal S. Wanjara, Darshit H. Trivedi, Anay U. Khairatkar and Deepak Sharma proposed the development of Attendance Monitoring System (AMS) using android platform. The proposed system provides the solution to lecture attendance problems through the use of AMS that is interfaced to the server. The students and teacher will have to install the respective files developed for their android devices (Akshay, Kunal, Darshit, Anay &

Deepak, 2014).

Adeoye T. Onaolamipo proposed a system that adopted biometric access control techniques, which is designed with extended graphical user interface by using Microsoft visual studio 2010 and integrated with Microsoft fingerprint reader. The student information is stored by MySQL which serves as database located in the user's computer or a server (Adeoye T. Onaolamipo, 2014).

Other attendance solutions are based on a QR code, which is being displayed for students during or at the beginning of each lecture. The students will need to scan the code in order to confirm their attendance (Fadi, & Nael,2014).

2. System Overview

The proposed system provides a solution to lecture attendance problems by developing a web-based student absence database to facilitate managing student's absence. By using this system, absence of students can be entered by a responsible person or lecturer remotely. Every student can view his/her absence information using a search page that is provided in the site. Also useful reports regarding absences can be generated.

In this site the administrator and lecturer can add the data of absence of students including student's names, lecture schedule, and subject of the lecture.

3. Feasibility Study

This Study begins one of the goals which are defined It starts by generating broad possible solutions, to give an indication of what the new system should look like. This is where creativity and imagination are used. Analysts must think new ways of doing things- generate new ideas. There is no need to go into the detailed system operation yet. The solution should provide enough information to make reasonable estimates about project cost and give users an indication of how the new system would fit into the organization. It is important, not to exert considerable effort at this stage, only to find out that the project is not worthwhile or that there is a need of significant change of the original goal. Feasibility of a new system means **ensuring the new system, which is to be** implemented, efficiently & affordably, efficiently and affordably.

The main purpose of feasibility study is to consider each and every possible factor associated with the project and determine whether the investment of time and other resources yield desired results (Sanjay, 2014). It also includes determining the investments, manpower and costs incurred on this project

There are various types of feasibility to be determined. They are,

3.1 Economic Feasibility:

The system being developed is economic with respect to School or College's point of view. It is cost effective in the sense that it has eliminated the paper work completely.

The system is also time effective because the calculations are automated and are done at the end of the month or as per the user requirement. The result obtained contains minimum errors and are highly accurate.

3.2 Technical feasibility

The technical requirement of the system is economic since it does not use any other additional Hardware or software.

3.3 Behavioral Feasibility

working with the system and learning to use it is quite easy to use and learn due to its simple but attractive interface. User requires no special training for operating the system.

4. System Requirement

4.1 Software Requirement

- Operating System:-Windows 7 Service Pack2
- PHP programming
- MYSQL database

4.2 Hardware Requirement

- Minimum RAM:-256 MB
- Hard Disk:-40 GB
- Processor:-Intel Pentium 4

5. System Implementation

The system is designed and implemented for managing the attendance of students. Figure 1. shows the Data Flow of System. The structure of the system consists of:

• The home page

i-manager's Journal on Information Technology, Vol. 4 • No. 2 • March – May 2015

- System admin page
- Record attendance page

6. Database Creation

The database of the system has been created using the PHP (WAMP sever) version 5.5.12. With PHP my admin page a new database has been created Which includes five tables. The attendance database has five tables (levels, students, materials, teachers and attendance).

6.1 Levels Table

Table 1 details the structure of levels. The table contains only two fields and they are, class Level code and Class Level Name.

6.2 Teacher Table

This table contains information about faculty members and is shown in Table 2.

6.3 Material Table

This table contains all course materials and their related information. its shown in Table 3.

6.4 Student Table

Here the authors present the structure of the student table, and its shown in Table 4.

6.5 Attendance Table

S. No.	Field Name	Data T	ype Description	
1	Class Level Co	de Numb	Der Unique key for Every Level	
2	Class Level Nar	ne Text	Name of Level	
Table 1. Levels Table				
S. No.	Field Name	Data Type	Description	
1	Teacher ID	Number	Unique key for Every Teacher	
2	Teacher Name	Text	Name of Teacher	
3	Level ID	Number	In which level teacher is teach	
4	Password	Number	Store password corresponding	
5	Active	Number	to username For history purposes	





The database of the student is kept in this file as shown in Table 5.

7. System Design

The design of the system is performed using text document with WAMPSERVER. It is simple for in creating forms and to save them as a PHP page.

7.1 Home Background Window

The home page provides a link to other system pages. The recording attendance and admin, student link as shown in Figure 2.

7.2 Recording Attendance

4

5

Student ID

Date

Teachers can access, the system through the login window (Figure 3). They need to enter their login information (username and password). This information is provided by admin through the registration process, which saved in Table 2 (teacher table).

After login page, the teacher has to choose a subject

S. No.	Field Name	Data Type	Description				
1	Subject ID	Number	Subject code, a unique key				
2	Class Level ID	Number	In which level material is studies				
3	Teacher ID	Number	Teacher who teaches this course				
4	Material Name	Text	Name of Subjects in each semester				
5	Unit	Number	Number of units				
6	Hours	Number	Number of hours per week				
	Tc	ible 3. Mate	erial Table				
S. No.	Field Name	Data Type	Description				
1	Student ID	Number	This is the roll no of the student				
2	level ID	Number	In which level student is studying				
3	Student name	Text	This is the name of student				
4	Student status	Text	Describe the statues of the student				
	Table 4. Student Table						
S. No.	Field Name	Data Type	Description				
1	Teacher ID	Number	Teacher who teacher this course				
2	Material ID	Number	Code of the subject				
3	Level ID	Number	In which level student is studying				

Table 5. Attendance Table

Number

date



Figure 2. Homepage Window

This is the roll no of the student

Date of absence

from the materials list relevant to his/her login information (Figure 4). This information is found in Table 3 (material table).

Next, a list of students for chosen material appears and teacher has to record the as shown in Figure 5.

In the Administrator home page if the teacher chooses reports, then he/she will get the details of student absence. The list can be filtered according to subject, date, class, level, and student name as shown in Figure 6.

7.3 System Administration

This window is dedicated to the system administrator. First the admin needs to login using his/her admin login information (name and password), as shown in Figure 7.

Then, admin can get access to system management, which enables him/her to alter the database



Figure 3. Login Window

	Online A	Itter	idance System	
Menu	Home			
Home	riome			
Lecturer Login		No.	Course Name	Level
Administrator		1	Database System	4
Auministrator		2	Advance Operation System	4
				0

Figure 4. Material Selection

Administrator							
	Co	ourse Name	Code Level System		Units	Total Hours	
	No.	Studer	nt Name	Absent Hour		Recording	
	1	Alaa Ali A	bdul Ameer			Record	
	2	Israa Abdulk	areem Mohsin			Record	
	3	Mohameed	Raad Kareem			Record	

Figure 5. Student Attendance Table

10

Data maintenance link enables the admin, to update, delete or add data on the teacher table as well on the student and course materials tables (Figure 9,10.11 respectively)

7.4 Report Window

The report link which is similar to the admin window except that the admin can review any course material not limited

Menu	Administrator	Home Page			-
Admin Home					
Edit Data	Course Name	Choose Course Level	v Level	Choose Level	,
Reports		Choose Course Level		Choose Cever	
	Date From		To		

Figure 6. Report of Absence

Menu	Administrator		
Home			
Lecturer Login		Login	
Administrator	User Name	Insert User Name	
		1	

Figure 7. Admin Login Window

	Online Attendance System
Menu	Administrator Home Page
Admin Home	
Edit Data	1
Add Data	Welcome to Administrator Home Page
Reports	

Figure 8. System Management Window

Edit Lecturer Edit Student	Add	<u>Teacher</u>			
Edit Course	No.	Teacher Name	Password	Level	Options
	1	Dr. Osama	10345D	4	22
	2	Dr. Mohammed	Mo6751	3	ê 🍰

Figure 9. Perpetuate Teacher Table



to certain persons as shown in Figure 12.

7.5 Student Login

Students also can see their absence and the ratio of absence through this link. They need to enter student name and password (code of student) as shown in Figure 13.

	Online Atte	ndance System		
	Administrator Hom	e Page		
Menu	8			_
Edit Lecturer	Add Student			
Edit Student				_
Edit Course	Student Name Ins	ert Student Name V Level C	hoose Lev	nel V
		Search		
	No. Code	Teacher Name	Level	Options
	1 10203	Mohamed Raad Kareem	4	22
		< Prev 1 Next >		

Figure 10. Perpetuate Student Table

No	Course Name	Lecturer Name	Code	Level	Units	Options
1	Control Engineering	Dr. Osama	CR405	4	3	11
2	Cryptography	Dr. Mohammed	CR307	3	3	
3	Intro. System Engineering	Dr. Sami	SE201	1	2	1

Figure 11. Perpetuate Course Material Table



When a student has logged in, the Report will appear which includes the student material history, and the details of absenteeism as shown in Figure 14.

Conclusion

The attendance management system has been developed using php. The system is highly resilient; it fully meets the intended objectives and operates at a high level of efficiency. The system solves the problem of delays and inaccuracies in recording absences compared to the manual system. The system has reliability; and a variety of reports can be generated Incorrect data entry can also be edited.

Recommendations

The following suggestions are identified for future work:

- Implementing attendance system as distributed database to be shared with the senior management.
- Issuing letters to the families of those students who exceed the permissible limit of absence and take corrective steps.
- Using web-based system will be beneficial for teachers and admin to browse and search the absence students remotely.



Menu	Menu Student Login							
Absence Reports								
Logout	Name Israa Fadil Husain Level 4							
	No.	Course Name	Units	Date	Absences			
	1	Web Programming & Scripts II	2	2014-06-18	6.66666667			
	2	Advance Operating Systems	3	2014-06-26	13.3333333			

Figure 14. Student Report

• Link system with the student admission system to update student lists automatically.

References

[1]. Adeoye T. Onaolamipo, (2014). "Development of A Computerized Biometric Control Examination Screening And Attendance Monitoring System With Fees Management", World of Computer Science and Information Technology Journal (WCSIT) ISSN: 2221-0741 Vol. 4, No. 6, pp. 76-81.

[2]. Akshay A. Kumbhar, Kunal S. Wanjara, Darshit H. Trivedi, Anay U. Khairatkar & Deepak Sharma, (2014). Automated Attendance Monitoring System using Android Platform, "International Journal of Current Engineering and Technology. E-ISSN 2277–4106, Vol.4, No.2.

[3]. Fadi Masalha, & Nael Hirzallah, (2014). A Students Attendance System Using QR Code, (IJACSA) International Journal of Advanced Computer Science and Applications, Vol. 5, No. 3. [4]. Kalaisankaran B. (2013). Studens Attendance Management System, M.Sc. Thesis, http://www.academia.edu/7760318/STUDENTS_ATTENDA NCE_MANAGEMENT_SYSTEM_MINI_PROJECT_REPORT_M ASTER_OF_COMPUTER_APPLICATIONS.

[5]. O. Shoewu, & O.A. Idowu, (2012), Development of Attendance Management System using Biometrics. *The Pacific Journal of Science and Technology*, Volume 13. Number 1. http://www.akamaiuniversity.us/PJST.htm.

[6]. Sanjay. T, (2014). Attendance Management system (Android App Development), International Journal of Emerging Technology and Advanced Engineering Website: www.ijetae.com (ISSN 2250-2459, ISO 9001:2008 Certified Journal, Volume 4, Issue 7.

[7]. Zhang Yuru, Chen Delong & Tan Liping, (2013). The Research and Application of College Student Attendance System based on RFID Technology", International Journal of Control and Automation.

ABOUT THE AUTHORS

Hamsa A. Abdullah is currently working as Assistant Lecturer at College of Information Engineering (since 2008). She has received her M.Sc Degree in Information Engineering from Information Engineering College, AL-Nahrain University, Baghdad, Iraq in 2008. Her research interests include Database Management, PHP MySQL, Multimedia, Pattern Recognition and Network Security.



Israa A. Mohson received her B.Sc Degree in Internet Engineering from Information Engineering College, AL-Nahrain University, Baghdad, Iraq in 2015. Her research interests include Database Management, PHP MySQL and Network Security.

Ether S. Mohamad Ali received her B.Sc Degree in Internet Engineering from Information Engineering College, AL-Nahrain University, Baghdad, Iraq in 2015. Her research interests include Database Management, PHP MySQL and Network Security.



Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

